SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND
REINSTURANCE COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Finaucial Statomeonts
For the year ended 31 December 2013
topgethor with the Independent aunditors’ report




Aldar Audit Bureau
Abdolah Al Basrt & Co.

Hatitthog He
i i) W ?of it

INDEFENDENT AUBTTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREBOLDERS OF

SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A AL JOINT STOC K CQM?ANY) '

Seope of attﬂgi;ﬁgg»

We have audited the aceompanying QSaTﬂm}m ai‘ fmamlat position of Sanad Cooperative Insurance and
Reinsurance Company {A Saudi Joint Stock, (,umpauy} (ihc “Company™) as at 31 December 2013 apd the
related statements of compmhcnsm, income - insyrance operations and sharcholders’ opfzzatmns,
statement of changes in shareholders’ oquity and statements of cash flows — insurance operations and

sharcholders’ operations for'the year then ended and the notes from i to 22 which {orm an integial part of

these financial slatements, These. finuncial staloments are the responsibility of the  Corspany's
management and have been prepared by them in accordatce with Fntemational Finanela! Reporting
Standards and the provisians of Article 123 of the Regulations for Gompantes and submitted to us
t{}g;etlwl with all-the information and explanations which we jeguired. Our responsibility is th express an
opinion on these financial stitements based. onour audit. We conducied our sudit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the. i{mg{iom of Saudi Arabia. Those standards require that we
prat-apid pcﬁﬁrm the wudit o Shiain reasonable & assuranide-about Whethier the fisahcial statéments are fiee
of materidl nHsstatement. An auditincludes eXamining, on-a test basis, evidence supporting the amoints
and diselosures in fhe financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the acconnding principles
nsad and sigificant estinntes made by management, as well as evalilating the oversl! fnancial statement
pieientation. We believe that our audit-provides 4 reaschable degide of assurance 1o engble us 1o express
an opinion on the financial statements, |

Uﬂquahf‘ed egini:m*
Int our opinion, the financial statements mken a8 wimle

iy present faitdy, in all thzdiariai respects, the financial pesiﬁén of ihe Coipany as at 31 Degember 2013
and the tesults of its operations and s cash flows 10r the year then ended in sccordance with
International Finandial Repofting Standards; atid

i) comply with the requireménts of this Regulations for Companies and the Company's by-laws in so far
as they affect the prqaaratl on and presentation of the financial statements,
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSUTRANCE COMPARY
£A Bandi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSIEION
(Amouni in Soudi Rivals)

31 December 31 December

Noty 13 L
ASSETS - INSURANCE OFERATIONS -
Cash and bask balances d 18,582,401 65,479,976
Premauns receivable, net 17 65,008,738 671,430,050
Reinsurers’ balsnce receivable, net 1,295,854 0,437,188
Reinsirers” share of cutstanding claims and other technical
reserves i) 23,638,391 37,611,190
Reingurers’ share of nnearped premium i 14,778,484 13,562,340
Deferred policy acquisition cost i2 3,620,528 1027284
Due from sharehiolders” operations 18,793,296 -
Prapaymenis and other assets 13,948,215 9,669,104
Property and equipment, net 7 4,462,452 3,486,781
Fotal assels - insurance operaiions 230,998,535 213,703,810
ASEETE - SHARFHOLDEES® OPERATIONS
Cash and bask balances 4 31,868,966 A49.94(,289
Statutory deposit Iq L9781 20,918,419
Invesiments — available for sale 0 44,060,370 40,145,978
L.oan receivable étc) 00,066 300,400
D from insuranee operafions - 4,901,022
Prepayments and other assets BN L L X N -1 ¢ S
‘Fotal asseds - shareholders’ aperations 98,655,350 116424819
‘Fofak Assels 328,753,905 330,128,729
LIABILITIES - INSURANCE OFERATIONS
Unesmed premium rosorve 1o 98,154,524 67,695,866
Remsurers’ balances payable 5,065,270 3,484,063
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 31,814,206 41,220,197
Quistanding ciaims and ofber echnical reserves g 88,763,481 90,709,402
Uneasned commission income 4,136.4518 32823538
End-ofgervice indeninities 3,871,086 2,490,967
Due to shareholders” operations . - 4,901,022
Totuf liabilities - insuravce eperations 230,098,585 213703918
LEABILITIES - SHAREROGLDERS® OPERATIONS
Acerued expenses and other liabilities 364,525 387,025
Zakal payable 8 16,271,155 9,935,141
Due to insurance operations _1879%.2% -
Total Habilities - shareholders® aperations 29,426,976 10,322,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES . 259,525,531 224,006 076
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 1y 290,008,000 200,500,000
Acenmulated deficit (135,950,411) {145,300,937)
lavestment revaluation reserve & 5,178,785 11,409,590
Total sharcholders’ equity TERRINE 09,228 374 106,102,653
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equify. __: 328,753,905 334,128,729

RS |
L

The accompanying notes 1 1o 22 form an integral part of these finaucial statemenis,
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REIMBSURANCE COMPANY
(A Sandi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - INSURANCE OPERATEONS
FORCTHE VEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2043
{(Amount in Saudt Rivids)

Netw 201 e D2
Gross insurance preminms wektten 2T, 799,584 182,260,854
{3ross inward reinsurance premivms weitten : 166,767 1,267,062
Total gross writien premium - ig 227,966,351 183,5271.916
Reinsurapce premivms ceded 10 (48,714,521 (45,304,384}
Net writien preminms 179,252,336 138,133,532
Changes i unezrned premimns 10 {31,038,058) 15,790,243
Changes i reinsurance unesrned premiums i0 1,217,140 £13,732.552)
et savned premismms 149,410,712 140,191,223
Reinsuranee commission 14,216,868 8,422,282
polieyfee 4134 22793
Underwriting rovenue 161,071,706 148 841 430
Gross claims paid 9 (132,800,533) (141,976,090
Reinsurance share of claims paid L 215882911 30422378
HNet clajms paid {111,217,562) £111,553,713)
Net changes in ontstanding olaim reserve 2 1,173,821 9,554,458
et changes in other technical reserve 9 (13,226.699) G.485,806
Wet ciajues neurred (123,264,449) (92,513,449}
Policy acgmisition costs 12 (20,548,389 (24,202,526}
Other underwriting expenses, not £0,563,609) {5,605,692)
{Charge t) /reversal of impairment allowance ngainst
doubtlu receivables (4.5837,280) 5,246,810
Underwritingexpenses gassers sy (117,134.857)
Enderwriling resolis 4,057,988 31,706,582
General and admicistration expenses 13 (46,454,118) {37,316,234)
Losg {rom insarance operations (40,436,136) (5,089,652}
Gaio/ (loss) on sale of property snd equipinent 13,000 (57,162)
Other income 34083 471,275
Net loss from imsurance operafions {40,319,047) (5,195,535
Cthrer comprehensive income o -
'Total comprehonsive Foss from insurance opovadions (40,119,047 (5,195,539
Transfer of comprehensive loss to shareholders’
operations 40,11%,047 5,195,539

Met results for the year

oL

—

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY

(& Sandi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENTY OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS

INCOME
Comnission incoms

BDividend income from investments
Cain ou sale of investments

EXPENSES

Transfer of loss from lnsurance operations
General and adminisiration expenses

MET LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ZAKAT

Zakat

NET LOSS FOR THE VEAR
Cther comprehensive income:

ltems that are or may be reclassified subseauently fo

profit ar loss:

Changes in fair value of available for sale investments, net
Transferred to statement of incame;
On sale of available for sale investiments

Total comprehensive Joss for the year

Basic and diluted loss per share

Weighted average number of shares in tssue

Note

I3

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{(Amount in Saudi Riyals)

2013 2012
529,741 610,231
1,552,849 1,528,929
10070314 253,944
1152404 2393104
(40,119,647 (5,195,539)
o SEAATO65)  (194],384)
(41,566,112) (7,136,923
(29,413,708) (4,743,819
{1,229,766) (2,586,077
(30,643,474) (7,329,406)
3,839,509 6,323,474
(10,678,314) .
(6230.805) 6323474
(36,874279) (1,066,422)
(1.53) {037
20,660,060 20,000,000

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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SAMAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND BEINSURANCE CORMPANY
{A Baudi Foint Stock Company}
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHARBHOLDERS BEQUITY
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2813

Forvestiment

Share Accumuialed revahaation

capital defielt . ... veserve _Hotal
Balanes at | Jansary 2012 200,000,000 (97,971,043 5,086,110 107,109,075
Netlossforthevemr - {7,329,89¢6) - (7,329,895)
Other comprehensive income
for the year - " 6,323,474 6,323,474
Total comprehensive loss for -~ - -
he year (7,329,896} 6323474 (1,006,422
Balanes 5t 31 Becember 2012 200,000,000 (105,306,937 11,409,590 106,102,653
Net loss for the year e {30,043,474) - (59,643,474)
Other comprehensive Joss for
the year o g (6,230,805) {6,231,80%)
Total comprehensive toss for T
the year ' (30,643.474) {6.,230,805) (36,874,279
Balance at 31Decomber 2013 200,000,800 (335950411 5178785 69,228,374

{Amonni i Saudi Riyals)

The accompanying notes 1 fo 22 form an integral part of these financinl statements,
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SANAD COUPERATIVE INSURANCE AND BEINSURANCE COMPANY

{A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
PO THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2413
{Amouni i Seoeli Riveds)

{hperating Activitics

Net tesults for the year

Adiusiments for non-cash items:

Transfer of loss to shareholders’ operations
Depreciation

Provision for empiovess’ end of service indemnitisg
Charge / (reversal) of impairment allowance against
doubiful recelvables

{Gainy loss on sale of property wd equipment

Operaiing cash flows before working capitel changes

Changes In operating sssets and Habilifies:
Framiyms receivable

Breferred policy acquisition costs, net
Prepayments and other assets

Unearned presium reserves, net

Unaarned commission come

Reingurers” balances payable

Agcrued expensss and other Habilities
Ouistanding claims wnd other technical resesves, net
Reinsuranee balance receivable

Cash from/ (wsed i} operations

Employees’ end of service benefits paid
et cush used in operafing activifies

Toavesting Acfivitics
- Purchuse of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property snd equipment

Net eash used in investing activities

Financing Activily
e to shareholders’ operations
Met eash from/ (used in) financing acfivities

Met changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Cash and eash equivalents, end of the yaur

Y

il

Note 1613 2012
(46,119,047 (5,195,539)
2,097,776 1,938,525
1,563,787 971,627
4,537,250 (5,246,810)
(13,000) 57,162
(31,%33,730) (7,469,035
(1,063,672) 1,544,235
(2,593,244) 3,090,211
(4,271,134) (3,554,738)
29,841,518 (2,057,691
847,630 (52,013}
(338,798) (32,199,583
(9,405,991) (2,821,343}
12,046,378 (19,040,264)
7,089,838 16,334,681
119,835 (46,235,540
(483,698)  (396,527)
- (263863 (46,6272.067)
(3,073,441) (688,405)
13,000 25,000
(3,060,441) - (663,405)
16,436,729 (5,289,9172)
16,426,729 (5,389 512)
13,102,425 (52,575,384)
4 65,479,976 118,055,360
4 78,582,401 65,479,976

The accompanying notes 1 1o 22 form an integral part of these financial statemonts,
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SANAL COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Suudi Joind Stock Cempany}
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
FORTHE YEAR BNBED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{Amoynt tn Saudi Rivols)

Note 2013 2012
Operating Activities
Net foss for the vear hefore zakat {39, 453,708) (4,743,819}
Adjustinentz for nom-cash ifeis:
Transferred from insurance operations 44,119,047 5,195,539
Gain on sale of ievestments (HL,870,314) (253,944)
Changes in eperading asseis and Habilities:
Accrued expenses and other labifities (22,500 289,500
Prepayments and other assels {1,428,582) 407,503
Cash (vzed w})/ from operations {817,027 894,779
Fakat paid (893,752} {893 410}
Net eash (used in) firom operating activitles (1,720,779 1,363
Investing Activities
Purchase of invesiments (1%,575.283) e
Disposal of investinents 19,560,400 10,133,548
Statutory deposit {158,932} {130,567}
Net eash (used in)/ from tavesting acfivities (233813} 9,093,981
Financing Activity
Due from insurance operations (L6.A426,72%) 5,289,612
Mot cash (used in)/ from Gnancing activilies (16,426,729 5,288,912
Wed changes in cash and cash equivaients (18,371,318 15,285,256
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 4 49,940,289 34,655,033
{ash and cash equivalents, end of the year 4 31,568,966 49,940,289
Non - eash supplemental information
Net chasge in fhir value of investments-available fin sale {6,230,80%) 6,323,474

@ L
o |y
\%ﬂf &

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 forn an integral past of these finarncial statements.
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND BEINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Baudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO YHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBEXR 2613

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIFPAL ACTIVITIES

Banad Cooporstive Insurasce & Reinsurance Company (the “Company™) is a Saudi Jeini Stock
Company incorporated vader Ministerial Resolution dated 5 Jumada Al Thani, 1428 H
{conresponding to 30 June 2007), The Cowmpany is registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabla under
comsmercial registration number 1010233409 dated 23 Junad AJ Thaai, 1428 H (comesponding fo 8
Jisly 2007). The objective of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance operations and related
activities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Compuany wag listed on the Saudi Steck Exclange on
21 Faly 2002

"The Registered Office address of the Company is focated at Dareon Center, Al Ahsa Steeet, Riyadh,
11417, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurement

These financial statements hava been prepared under the historical cost conveatiosn, except for the
available-for-sale investments which are measured af fair valoe

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s solvency 1margin is below the limit presoribed by Saudi
Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA). However, bused on Company’s discussions with SAMA,
future business prospects and anticipated improvement i net resufts of the Company, the
management believes that the going cencern assumption is valid and has therefore prepared these
financial siatements o a going concern basis,

Staternent of cormplicncs

The financial statements of the Company Tor the year ended 31 December 2813 have besn prepared
by the management in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}.
Accordingly these financiul statements are net intended to be a prasentation in conformity with
secounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, ss issued by the Saudi
Organization for Certified Pubdic Accountants (“"SOCPA™).

As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, fle Company maiataing separate accounds for
Insuranee Operations and Sharehoklers’ Operations, The physical custody of all assets 1elated fo the
Insurance Operations and Sharcholders’ Operations are held by the Company. Revenues and
expensss clearly attributable to either activity are racorded in the respective accounts. The basis of
allocation of other revenne and expenses from joini operations is determined by the management and
Board of Directors,

Fanctional and presentation currency

The financial statements have been presented 111 Sir

i'ﬁ?ﬁii-i'yéﬁl_s, _\&l)i::h"-is the fimoticnal und
presentation currency of the Company. s EeT

Use of estimades and judgements

The prepacation of annual financial statements iu conft}mnty wﬁlz Intcmat]onai Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) requires the use of estimetes, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assels and finbilities at the date of the
annual financial statements ad the reported amounts of revense and expenses during the wpm ting




BANAD COUPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Boudt Johul Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2613

2. BASIS OF PREPABATION (Continued)

24 Use of estimates and judgenrenss (conifnied)

Althongh these estimates and judgments are based on management’s best knowledge of currert
evewis aud acfions, actual resufts wiimately may differ from thoss estimates, Estimates and
hdgments are continually evalnated asd based on historical experience and other factors,
meluding expeetations of future svents that are beliaved io be reasonuble under the circumstances.

Details of the key estimates and judgments made by managemaeut pertain to:

® Tmpairment and uncollectibiiity of fiuancial assets (nofe 3.18)
Outstanding clalms and other technical reserves (nofe 3.3)

& Fair valne of investments (note 3.11)

@ Unearned preminm reserve (note 3,1)

J Bnd of service indemnities (note 3.18)

e Useful fife of properly and equipment {sote 3.14)

» Deferred policy acquisition costs (note 3.4)

# Going congern (note 2.1 und 19)

2.5 New stasidards, smendaenis io standords and interpreiations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoptiorn of the following amendment to IFRS effeclive for the annnal period beginning as of 1
Janary 2013

4} New standards

IFRS 13 Faiv Value Bieasurerment establishes a single source of guidance snder FFRS for all fair
vahie measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an eutity is required to nse fair value, but
rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under JFRS. IFRS 13 defines fuir value as
an exil price. As a resolt of fhe guidanee in IFRS 13, the Company re-assessed its policies for
measuring fair values, In particuise, its valuation inpuls such as noa-pesformance risk for fair value
messurement of Habilities. TFRS 13 also regoires additional disciosures.

Application of {FRS 13 las nol materially impacted the fair value measurements of the Company.
Additional disclosores where required, are provided in the ndividual notes relating to the assets
and liabititics whose fair values were determined. Fair value hiermchy is provided in Note 17.

b Amendmenis to existing sfondardy

Amendments to IFRSY 7 Financiel Instramenis: Disclosure: Amends the disclosuse
requirements i IFRS 7 to require information about all recognised- financial instraments
that are set off in accordance with paragraph 42 of JAS 32 and also require disclosuie of
information about recognised financial instruments subject to enforeeable master netting
arraigements and agreements even i they afe nm getoffundér IAS 32

- Amendments to IAS ¥ Preseniation of Ifems ::y’ Gﬂzef* (,a:qure)‘mmve Income: The
amendients to JAS 1 introduce & grouping of Hems pme:zte{% 113 OCL Hems that will be
reclassified (‘reeycled’) 1o profit or loss af a futuré” point in time {e.g., net loss or gain on
AFS finuucial assets) have to be presented sepastely Trom jlems that will not be
reclassified (e.g., revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments affect presentation
only and have no inpact o the Company’s financial position or performan

VA
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sandi Foint Bteck Company}

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
RASIS OF PREPARATION (Continmed)

New séandards, omendments to standards and nterpretationscontitued)

b} Awmendments to existing standards (comtinued)
- IAS I Clarifieation of the veguirement for comparative information {Asendment):

Thess amendments olarify the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimom required comparative information. An entity must include
compatative information i the related notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative infonnation beyoud the minimum reguired comparative pertod. The
amendments clurify that the opening statement of financial position (ss ut 1 J amuary 2012
in the case of the Company), presested as a result of retrospective restatement or
reclassification of items in financial statements dees not have o be accompanied by
comparative sformation jn the related notes. The amendments affect presentation only
and have no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

Stardards and interpreiations issued brat not yei effociive

Following are the Standards and interpretutions issued but not yet effective up to the date of
issuance of the Company’s financial statements, The Company intends to adopt these standards, i
applicable, when they become effective:

IFRS 9 Financiad Instrumenis

On 19 November 2013, the JASB issued & new version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {Hedge
Accounting and amendments to JFRS 9, TFRS 7 and 1AS 39). IFRS 9 (2613)) which includes the
new hedge accounting requirements and some related amendments to [AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IPRS 7 Finanoial Instruments; Disclosures. IFRS
9 {2013) also replicates the amendments in TAS 39 i respect of novations. The standard does not
have a mandutory effective date, but it is availuble for application now, A new mandatory offective
date will be set whou the JASB completes the impairment phase of its project on the accounting for
financial statements, Entities may elecl 1o upply only the acoounting for gains and Josses from own
oredit risk without applying the other requirements of IFRS 9 at the same time. An accoyniing
pelicy choice to continus to apply the hedge accounting requirements of TAS 39 is available for of
their ledging relationships. They may later change that policy and apply the hedge accounting
requirements in IFRS 9 before they eventally become mandatory. This cheice is intended to be
removed when the IASE completes its project on accounting for macro hedging,

145 32 Qffserring Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendwents to 145 32

These amendments clarify the meuning of “currently has 2 legally enforceable right 1o set-off” and
the eriteria for non-simultaneous seftlemient mechanisms of clearing honses fo qualify for
offsetting. These are effective for aunual perieds beginsing on or after 1 Janvary 2014, These
ametkiments are not expected to be relevant to the Company,

10




BANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBER 2813

3. SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Revenue Kecoguition

Recognition of presitum and commission revenue

Premivms and commission are taken o “statement of comprehensive income - insurance operations”
over the terms of the policies to whicl they relate o a pro-rata basts, so that the revenne is recognized
over the period of the risk. Unearned premimms represeut the portion of premiums wrilten relating to the
unexpired period of coversge. The cliauge in the provision for unearned premiwns is taken fo the
“stalement of comprebensive ingomme - insurance operations™, over the period of risk,

Retained premiums and commission income, which relate to snexpired risks beyond ile end of the
{inancial peried, ar¢ reporied as unearned and deferred based on the following methods:

» 25% of premiums for murine cargo business
. Actual sumber of days for other lines of business
° Pre-defined calculation for Engineeting class of business for risks undertaken that extend beyond a

single year. In accordance with this calenlaiion, lower prewminms are earsed in the first year which
gradually increase fowards the end of the tenure of the policy.

The Company commenced using the pre-defined caleulation for BEngineeriug class of business staring |
January 2013, As only the caloulation for deferring the premivms bas beey amended, this is a chiange in
aceomnting estimate. This change in calonlation is expected to have minimal impact on the net carned
preminms of the Company for futore years as the nef retention of the Company iu respect of Engincering
business is considered 1o be minimal by Management,

The underwriting roselts represents premiums earned, foe and commission income eamed less claims paid,
other undeswriting expenses and anticipated chuims payable in respect of the year, net of amounts snbject
to refnsurance, Joss pravision for any anticipated fatie losses on continuing policies.

frvestment income

Return on investments, profit and loss sharing accounts and bank deposits are recognised using offective
interest rate method.

Profit or loss on sale of investments s recoguised at the titne of sale.
Dividend income is recogaised when right to receive such dividend is establisbed

12 Frsurance comiract

Tnsurance contracts are defined as those condzising significant insurance risk af the inception of the contract
or those where at the iuceplion of the coniract thess is a scenario with commercial substance where the level
of insirance risk may be significant. The signticance of insurarce risk is dependent on both the probability
of an insnred event and the maguitude of its potential offect.

Opee 2 cosfract has been classified as an insurance confracl, i temakis an lugecance contract for the
remainder of ifs lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period.




SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Buudi Jodnt Stock Company)
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coutinued)
3.3 Cladns

Clairs consist of amounts payable o polisy holders and thivd pariies and related loss adjustment expenses,
net of salvage and other secoveries and are charged o statement of comprehensive income-insurance
operations. Geoss outstanding olaims comprise gross estimated cost of claims inenrred but not setted at the
veporting date, whather repostad or not, Provisions for reporfed claims not paid as of the finascial reporting
date are made on the basis of individual case estimates. The Company does not discount ifs liabilifies for
unpaid claims as subsiantially sl elaims are expected to be paid within oue year of e flaancial reporting
date.

Chistanding claims and other technical reserves

The Cormpany generally sstimates s claims based on previous experience. In addition a provision based on
management’s jndgment is nmiotained R the cost of setiling claims “incurred but not reporfed” and
“unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve” ai the reporiing date, Any difference hetween the provisious
at the balance sheet date and settlements and provisions for the following peried Is incloded in the
underwriting acconnt for that period, The Company acquires services of an independent actoary to
determine such clains,

The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share of the reinsurers is shown separaiely,

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising fron: elaims made under inswrance condraeis is the Company's
most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need 1o be considered in
cstimating the Habikity that the Company will viimaicly pay for such claims, The provision for claims
incursed bt not reporied is an estimation of clains which are expected 16 be reported subsequent fo the end
of finuncial roporting period, for which the insured event has ocenrred prior to the end of the financial
reporting period.

3.4 Deferred policy acquisition cosis

Commissions and other costs divectly related to the acquisifion aad renewal of Insurance coniracts are
deferred and amertised over the terms of the ussrance confracts to which they relale as preminms are
saraed. Amortisation is recorded in the “statement of compreliensive incoe - insurance oparations”.

Changes in the expected useful 1ife or the sxpected pattesn of conswmpiion of fature econstiic benefils
ernbadied in fhe assel are accounted for by changisg the amortisation period and are treated as a change
accounting estimate.

An impaimment review is performed at cach financial repording date or more frequently when an indication
of impairment ariscs. When the recoverable amounts are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised in the stalement of comprehensive income - insirance operations. Defersed policy acquisition
cost is alse considered in the liability adequacy test for each financial reporting period.

3.5 Beinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal conse of business for all of ifs husinesses nnder which
the Company is compensated for losses on insnrance confracts issued., Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from Reinsurance Company. Recoverable smounts are estimated in 2 manner coasisterd with
the outstanding claims provision and are in accordunce with the relusurance contract,

- M
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3. SHGNIFICAINT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinned)

3.5 Refugurunce {continyed)

An impatrment review is performed at each reporting date or mare frequently when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment ocanys when objective evidence exists that the
Company may not recover ontstanding amounts under the ferms of the contract and when the impact an the
amounis that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be messured reliably, The mpairment foss
is recorded in the “statement of comprelensive income - insurance operalions™

Ceded reinsnrance arrangements do not relieve the Company froms s obligations to policyholders.
Preistums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recogrised as incoms and expenses in the same manaer
as they would be if fhe reinsurance were considercd divect business, taking into acconnt the product
classification of the reinsured birsiness.

Reinsurance liabilities represent bakances due to reinsimance companies. Amounts payable are sstimated in
a manner consistent with the associated reinsurazice contract. Praminms und claims are presented on a
gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance. Reinsurance ussets or liabilities are derecognised
when the confraciual rights are extinguished or expire or whean the coniract is transferred o ancther purty.

5.6 Kihitity adeguucy fost

At each reporling date the Company assesses whether ifs recognised insurance liabilities are adequute
using curreni estimates of future cash flows 1mder its fnsurance contracts. ¥ that assessment shows that the
carrying amount of its insnrance Habilities (less related deferred policy acquisition costs) is inadequate in
the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency Is immediately recognised in statement of
comprebensive income- insurance operations and an upenpired risk provision is created. The Company
daes not discount its linbility for unpaid clalms as substantially all cluims are expected fo be paid witkin
one year of the reporting date.

3.7 Tnvesiments

All investments are initiafly recognised at fair value, including acquisition charges associated with the
investment. Preminms are amortised and discovnts acerued using the effective yield meiliod and ave taken
to the “statement of comprebensive income ~ shareholders” operations™,

Following initial recognition of investment securitics, the subsequont period-end reporting valucs are
determined on the basis &s set out in the following paragrapin

Available for sale

Investments which are classified as “available for sale” are initially recorded at cost including transection
cost and are subsequently measured af fair valee, Available for sale investments ave those investments that
are not held-o-maturity nor held for frading, For an available for sale investment whore the fair value has
not been hedged, any gain or loss arising from a change in its fair valee is recognised directly in
sharehokders’ eqnity until the investment is sold, collected or ctlierwise disposed of or until the investmert
is determined to be impaired at which time the cunmiative gain or loss previcusly recognised in the
sharcholders’ equity should be inclided in the “statement ol compichensive income — shareholders’
operations” for the period. Far secities that are traded in organised financial markets, fair value i
determined by reference o exchange quoted market bid prices at the ¢iose of business on the reporting dale
withont deduction for fransuction costs, Fair valne of investment in mutual fimds is determined by
reference to declared net assel values.

For an uﬁqnotcd equity investment, fair value 18 defenmined by reference 1o the markeﬁ value of a similar
investment or is based on the expected discounted cush fows. :

e ———
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3 BIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continnad)

18 HKecetoables

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets wiil: fixed or determinable payments. These are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at arnortised cost using the effestive interest
method, less provision for impairment,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced theough the use of an allowaace account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of “statement of comprehgnsive income -~ inswauce operations”, An
allowance for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Compuny
will not be able to collect all amonnts die according to their original terms. Receivables arising from
administeative service plan are also classified in #his category and are reviewed for impairment ag part of
the impatrment review of recebvaliles,

3# Frovisions

A provision for incurred Habilities is recognised when the Company has & present Jegal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses,

S 1 kmpaiveient and ancollectibifity of ffaanciol essets

An assessment is made at each reporting date fo determine whether thete is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assefs may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impaitment loss is
recognised i the “stalement of comprehensive income - shareholders' operations”. Jropairment is
determined as follows:

o For assets carried at fair value, impainment is the significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below the cost.

® For assets carried at cost, impairment is the differciice between the cost and the present value of
futnre cash flows discounted at the current market vate of return for 4 similar financial asset.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or gronp of assets is bmpaired includes ohservable data that comes
fo the attention of the Company about the foliowing events:

& Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or deblor;

® Acbreach of confract, sizeh us a delanlt or delinquency in payments;

2 it becoming probable that the issmer or debfor wiil enter bankruptey or ofber Snanciaf
reorganization;

The disappearance of an active market for that finencial asset because of financial difficulties; or
Observable data indicating thal there is a measurable decresse in the estimated fulure cash flow
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, althongh the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the Company, including:
Adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or debtors in the Coinpany; or

3 National or local economic conditions at the country of the issusrs that correlate with defaults on
the assets.

v ot
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SANAD COGPRRATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{& Baudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO FHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 33 DECEMBER 2013

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continwed)

3210 Impoirment and nncollectibility of financial assets feontinned)

Tte Company assesses receivables that are sndividnally significant and receivables included  a gronp of
firancial assets with similar eredit risk chasacteristics for impairment. Receivables that are individually
assessed for impairmend and for which an ilmpainnent loss is or continues 0 be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgment. In making this
Judgment, the Company evalnates credii risk charscteristics that consider past-due status leing indicative
of the abilify o pay all atmornis due as per contractual terms.

307 Fair vofues

The Compamy measures fivancial instroments, such as, derivatives, and now-financial assets at fair value at
sach balance sheetl dute, Alse, fiair values of fivancial mstraments measuared af amortised cost are disclosed
in Nofe 17. Fair value is the prics that would be received fo sell an sssel or paid to @ausfer a lability fo an
crderly transaction between market participants at the messurement date. The fair value measnrement i
based on the presumption that the transaction to sefl the asset or transfer the lability takes place eithen:

B in the principal market for the assel or Hability, or
L in the absence of & principal market, in the most advantageons marked for the asset or liability

The principal or the 1most advaniageous market mnst be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an
asset of & fabilify 15 meusured using the assumptions that market participasts would nse when pricing the
asset or Hability, assuming that market participants st in their economia best interest.

A fair value measoroment of & non-finanoial asset fakes info account a market paicipant's ability to
generate economic benefits by vsing the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant thut would use the assel in its lighest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techaiqaes that are appropriate ia the ciroumstances and Tor which sufficiest
data are available to raeasure fair valne, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and mintedstug
the use of uncbscrvable inpots.

All assels and liabilities for which falr value is messured or disclosed in the fisancial statoments ars
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest fevel input that is
significant to the fair value measnrement as a whole:

Level T - Qnoted (unadjustad) market prices in active markels for identionl assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation teehniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to he fair valse
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest fevel inpud that is significant 1o the fair value
measuremeant is unobservable

For assels and Habilities that ave recognised ity the financial statements on 2 recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred beiween Levels in the hiexarchy by re-assessing calegorization
{based on the lowest level inpuf that Is significant o the fair value measurement as & whole) at the end of
each reporling pericd.

For tlio pupose of fair value disclosures, the Company has deterimined classes of assets and Habilitles on
he basis of the maturs, churacleristics aud risks of the asset or liability and the level of the falr value

higrarchy a3 explained above.
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3 SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING PFOLICIES (Continued)

REE Fair vidues feontined)

The Company’s managemeni determines the policies and procedures for boih recurring fair valne
measurernant and for non-rectrring messurenient, such as assets beld for distribution in any discontirued
operation, Extemmal valpers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and AFS
finapcial assets, and significant lisbilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of sxternal
vatuers is decided upon annually by the valuation committee. Selection criferia inchude market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are imaintained,

301 Offsetting

Financial assats and Habilities are offsst and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there is a lsgally enforcenble nght o offset the recognised amounis and thers s an infention to
seftle ont a net basis, of to realise the assels and settle the Hability simultancously. Income wnd expense is
nof offset i the statemesrts of comprehensive income unless required or permitted by any accounling
staadard or interpretation.

313 Derecogpuition of financial ingfreserits

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company no longer cowirols ihe
contractual rights that comprise the financial lustrunen, which s normaily the case when thie Instruent is
sold, or all the cash flows aliributable to the nstrument are passed threngh to an independent third parly,

3.8 Fraperty and equipment

Property and equipment aie initially recorded at cost less aceumulated depreciation and auny impairment in
value, Expenditure for repair and maintenance is charged to income. Improvements that incrense the valie
or materially extend the life of the related assets are capitatised. Depreciation is charged {o the “statement
of comprehensive income — insurance operations” on a siraight line basis over the estimated usefid lives of
the assets, The estinated useful lves of the assets are:

o Yoz
Furniture Hi
Cotnputers and office equipment 4
Motor vehieles 4
Leaschold improvements 3
Intangible - Software 4

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
cisoumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to thel
recoverable amounl.

315 Leases

Operating lease paynients are recogaised as an expense in the staloments of comprehensive income on a
siraighi-line basis over (e lease term,

-f{\ 16
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3 SIGHIFICANT ACOCUUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

316 Fordign currencles

Transactions iu foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional curcency rate ruling s the dafe of
the transaction. Moactary nssets and liabilittes denomimated in foreign cinrvencies are re-franslated af the
functional ensrency rate of exchange rling at the reporting date, Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a forsign currency are fransiated using the exchangs rate as ai the date of the
wrtial fransaction and wre wof subsequently reststed, Non-monetary iems measured at fair valne i a
foreign currency are translated using thg exchenge rates sl the dute when the fair value was determined. All
foreigy exchange differences ave faken {o the statemont of compreliensive Income - insurance opesalions,
gxeept when they refate Lo items where gaiis or losses e recognized directly in comprehensive income
and the gain or loss is recognized ref of the eachange component in squity,

317 Zokef and income Hox

Zakat is compited on the Saudi shareholders” share of equity or nel adjusted income nsing the busis
defined wnder the Zakat regidasions in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Income tuxes are compuied on the
foreign sharehelders” share of net udjusted mcome.

Zakat and income fax s acarved and charged to the stafement of comprehensive ncome - shaveholdery’
operstious,

The Corpany withholds taxes on certain iransactions witl nop-resident pariies in the Kingdony of Sandi
Arabia as required under Saudi Arabian Iscome Tax Law.

318 End-gf-service fndemniiies
End-ol-service indeinnities, required by Saudi Arabian Labor Law, ure provided in the fincial statemenis
based on the employees® Tengih of servise,

319 Seatutery reserve

In accordance with its Asticles of Association, the Company shull allpcate 2046 of s net Wcome each yesr
to the statalory reserve until it hus buill op & reserve equal to the share capital, In view of the sconmulated
fosses, no suel (ransfer has been made.

328  Segment w;mriiﬁg

Ay operating segment s a component of the Compuny that is enguged in business activities from whlch 11
earns reveses and incur expenses and sbout which discrete financial information ks available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision malker jn deciding how to allocate resowrces and in
assessing performance. For managanent puiposes, te Company is organised inlo business units based on
their products and services and has five reportable operating segments as follows:

8 The heaitl: care products provide medical cover to policyholders,

® Motor Insurance provides coverage against losses aud Hability selated to meotor velicles, excluding
fransport insurance.

® Marine insurance, which is made np of vmarne cargo, iucluding infand transit, open cover and
marine hull prodiets.

@ Bagineering insurance, which is made up of erection all risk, machinery breakdown, contractors’
al risk, coutractors’ plant and equipment and other prodoet lines,

# Others, which are made up of property insurance, general accident insurance and casualty

inguranes, which inchudes an array of products ranging from.-fire to fidelity guazanfﬁ:e to public
liability coverags. /7 _.
/
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3 SICGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICITS {(Continned)

328 Segrent peporiing (coufinned}
Operating segments do not nelude sharchiolders” operations of the Company.

Operating segments are reporled in » maiter consistent with the infernal 1eporting provided to the vhief
opergting decision-maker, The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and ussessing performance of the opserating segments, hus been identified as the chief exacutive officer that
mzkes strategic decisions,

331 Eurnings pey share

The Companzy presents basic and diluted earnings per share (BPS) data for its ordinury shares. Basic EPS is
caloulated by dividing the profit or loss atiribstable fo ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the
weighted average nmumber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Dilated EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or foss atwributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of alf dilufive potential ordinary shases.

328 Coash and cash eguivalents
For the purpese of cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash in curent account and

murabaha deposits with an originel maturity of three months or Jess.

4. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2313
fnsarance Shareholders®
Operafions Operations
Cash in hand 45,015 -
Bank balunces 48,557,386 1,508,966
Murabala deposits 36,600,008 36,000,006
78,582,401 31,568,966
2042
Insuramce Shareholders’
Operations Operaticns
{Cash in hand 25,001 -
Bank balances 35,434,975 £.940 280
Mursbaba deposits 30,400,000 40,000,060
65,479,976 49,940,280

Murabalia deposits are mainfained with financial institutions. Murababa deposits for Iusurance operations
mature on 28 Jangary 2014 and those for shareholders’ operations muture on 27 Januacy 2014, These eam
commission af the average rate of 1.85% as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: 1.5%}.

Sa RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personne! of the Company,
andt compantes of which they are principal owness and any other entities controlled, jointly eontrolled or
significantly influenced by them. Pricing policies and texms of these transactions are approved by the
Company’s management. / 2 R
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5  BELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Sandi Continental Inzurance Company is a related party beiug 10% founding shareholder in the Company
and through common directorship, and Agead Invesiment Company is a related party through 96% shares
in Sandi Continental Instvance Company and also having a cominon directorship. Following exntities are
refated parties by virtue of common directorship and eontrof:
- Alesayi Motors
. Arabian Ties Company
- Medical Supplics and Services Company Limited (MEDISERY)
- Nationa} Advanced Systenss Company Limited (NASCO)

United Motors Company

The Arab Palestinian Investment Company Limited (APIC)

Rivadh Phanna

Eetails of significant fransactions carried ont during the yeur with related parties are as follows:

2013 2012
Gross writken  Gross claims Gross writtenn  Gross claims

Related pariy premium paid pretaiym paid

Aggad Tvvestment Company 162,21 328,139 714,698 272,563
Arabian Tiles Company 1,442,948 7687 818 916,717 832,982
MEDISERV 3,199,600 2,282,058 2,284,601 2,782 961
NASCO 6,1%0,014 4,439,319 5,431,403 3,488,832
United Motors Company 13,427,958 13,945,303 14,400,450 8,583,489

b} Balances with related partiey.

Datails of significant receivables firom and payables to the related parties are as follows:

2013 2612
Promiume Orutstanding Preaniums Ontstanding

Related party reeeivable claims receivable Claims

Aggad Investment Company o4 180,121 145,219 134,874
Argbian Tifes Company 1,105,342 239,971 863,451 268,328
MEDISERY 1,081,262 815,285 1,040,606 2,343,997
NASCO 3,893,057 5,755,928 2,985,638 4,774,113
United Motors Company 1,021,857 6,537,380 4,160,196 3,401,200

¢} Compensation of kev manageptent persoinal;

Key management personnel of the Company inchade ali directors, executive and non-executive, and senior
management, The stuminary of compensation of key management personss| for the year is as follows:

2812
Salaries and other short tenn benefits 4,374,138
End of service benefit 223313

4,597.671
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6. INVESTMENTES
%) Invesiments in available for sale secuvifios
fivvestment in available for sale securities comprise of the following securities:
—_—— aes et = = e 8 = e mrmenn o N 2{}13 -
Cost Unreslised gain Market vaive
Quoted
Mutua! Foads H,5254998 375,243 $,494.25%
Gobal Sukuh Fund deposits 2,450,080 1,648,930 §1,008,936
Eqnities 10,882,509 3,156,562 24938078
36,858,507 5,178,785 42,137292
Ungunfed o
Equities (¢) 1,923,078 S TR o225 1L -
38,881,585 B ATE8,785 44,860,370
TP —— ?O 1 ? N
Cost Market value Ungealised gain
Duoted
Watual Fonds 6,625,998 321,508 4,947,506
Glohal Sukuk Fand deposiis 9,450,000 1,540,189 14,998,789
Bquities 10,737,312 9,341,293 20,278,505
26,813,310 11,409,590 38,222,900
Hngnoted
Equities (o) 1,923,078 = 1,923,078
28,736,288 11,400,590 40,145,978
b) Movement in available for sale investinends is as follows:
N 2012
Balance at beginning of the year 40,345,278 43,702,108
Addition during the year 19,575,283 -
Disposals during the year (19,500.400) {4,879,604)
Change in faur value _ 3839508 6323474
Balance at end of the year 44,060,370 40,145.978
) Investment in Najm Insurance Services Company

This investment represents a 7.69% (2012: 7.69%) equity holding in the unguoted share capital of “Najm
Insurance Services Company” As the fair value is not readily available, this investment has been carried at
cost and reviewed by management for impairnment, A commission free loan of SR 500,000 (2012 SR
500,000 with unspecific repayment period has also been advanced to Najm Tusurance Services Compauy.

e
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&. INVESTMENTS {eontinued)

R R R o irvia,

) The sector wise analysis of available for sale investments by eounterparty s as follows:
....... 2013 1T
Financial institutions 18098,23% 17,944,205
Tetecommunication 15,420,323 0,228,605
Cement R2GINTR0 11,050,040
Services 1,913,078 1,923,478
44,060,370 44,145,978

Vi PROTPERTY AND EOUIPMENT, NET

_ADE3

Leasehold Meotor
Software Computers Fursifure improvemenis vehicles Foind

Cont:

Balance at beginning of the year 2,017,846 2,907,903 2,078,349 3,630,516 356,008 10,990,654
Additions during the year 530,818 520,901 348,241 1,432,681 231,800 3,073,441
Disposals during the year - {24,155} o - (30,000) {54,155}

Balance af end of the year 2,557,5§§ 404,649 E;;%iﬁgﬁgi} §§ﬁ3,19? 557,3(1{}_ 14,809,948
Accumutlated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of the year 1,581,807 2,269,523 741,848 2,644,072 266,623 7,563,873

Charge during the vear 376,682 397,867 272,01 968,657 82,553 2,697,970
Disposals during the year s - (24,155} - (30,000} (54,155}
Balance atend of theyear 1,058,489 2,643,235 1013850 3612729 319,176 9,547,488
Met hook valneat3t o
Decemher 2813 599,178 161,414 1412971 1450468 238624 4,462,452
= s v 2{} i 2 B T
Leaschold Motor
Softiware Computers Furpiteee lmprovements  vehicles Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of the year 2,006,746 2,695,990 2,164,07%  3,230,548% 356,000 10,453,363
Additions diring the year 11,100 235,124 42,213 359,968 . 688,405
Disposals during the year - {23,211y (127,903) - = {151,114)
Balance at end of the year 2,3%’? JB40 2900003 2078380 3,630,516 3§§,§'{30_ E 089,054

Accunulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of the year 1,127,328 1,825,395 583,050 1,897,820 200,767 5,634,304

Charge during the year 454,40 460,371 205,507 746,252 65,016 1,938,525
Disposals during the year - £22.243) {46,709 - - {GR,051)
Balance at end of the year 1,581,807 2,269,523 741,848 2,644,072 266,623 7,303,873

Net book value at 31 December e _ j
2612 436,039 $38,380 1,136,341 GR4 444 89,377 3,486,781

ﬂw@‘ﬁ/ :
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8. ZAKAT ARD INCOME TAX

{a} Falat

The provision for zakat of SR 1,229,766 {2012: 8R 2,586,077) hus beon made for the year ended 31
Decomber 2013,

)] Movernents in zakat provision

2413 2012
Balance at beginning of the, year 9,938,141 8,242,430
Zakat charge for the yoar 1,229,766 2,580,077
Payments made during the year 893,752)  {893.416)
Balance af end of the your 10,271,158 9.935,141

{c) Income Tax

No incoms tax has been provided due fo negative tax base. For the year ended 31 Deceiber 2013, the
Company has inewred adjusted tax Josses which may be carded forward fo future years without limitation
of time.

(B Statas of assessinents

The Company bas filed tax and zakal declaration for the years ended up to 31 December 2012, The
Company has filed an appeal against Department of Zakat and Income Tax’s (DZIT) assessment of
additional zakat anrounting to SR 5.2 millios, wsising from disallowance of cestain investments from zakat
base for 2010, 2011 and 2012 The Compnry has recorded the additional zakal provision in the financial
shajements.

9. CLAIMS AND TECHNICAL RESERVES

9.4 Incurred cluimy

2013
Eeinsurers’
Gross Share Net
Claims paid during the year 132,800,533 {(21.582.9T1)  11L217,562
Changes in outstanding claims reserves (9,843,40%) 8,675,588 {1,173,821)
Changes in othey technical reserves 7,903,488 5,317,211 13,220,699
130,855,612 (7590,172) 123264460
— e e e 20 12
Reinsnress”
Gross Share Net
Claims paid during the year 141,976,091 (30,422,378  115553,713
Changes i outstanding clairas reserves (6,517,005) (3,037.453) (9,554,458}
Changes in other technical reserves (041,039} (2,444,767 (9,485,806)
128,418,647

P \zﬁﬂ)
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SANADR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(Admorint in Scudi Riveris)

% LA AIS AND THRCHNICAL RESERVES (continned)

2.8 Onustanding claims and other fechinical veserves

QOutstandiag claim reserves
Incursed bnt not reported rescrve
Premium deficieny raserve

Cutstanding claim reserves
Incurred but not reporied reserve
Other techinical reserves

16, PREMIUMS

0.0 Farved premium

Total gross written premdnm
Changes in snearned premiam

Total gross written premium
Changes in unsarned premivm

2003
Relnsurews’

Lross Share Mot
54,435,816 (19,524,52%) 34,911,287
23,880,657 (4,593,862} 19,786,795

10,447,008 16,447,008
88,763,483 (23,618,301) 65,145,090
2012
Reinsurers’

Qross Share Net
64,285,225 (28,200,117) 36,085,108
23,808,330 (%411,073) 14,397,257
2,615,847 - 2,615,847
96,709,402 (37,611,190) 53,098,212

) 2813

Reinsuvers’

{xross Share Nt
277,966,353 {(48,714,121y 179,252,230
{31,658,658) 1,217,140 (29,841,518)
196,507,693 {47490,981y 149,416,712

212
HReinsurers’

Gross Share Net

183,527,916 (45,394.384) 138,133,532
15,790,243 £13,732,552) 2,057,691
199,318,159 (59,126,936 140,191,223

e




SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
(& Bandi Joint Stock Company)
MOES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3} DECEMELER 2013
{Awronnt in Saudi Rivals)

14, PREMEUME (continned)

10 (1) Unearned premivm reserves (UJEP)

o 2043
Relnsurers’
Grosy Share HMet
Balance as at beginning of the vewr 57495860 (13,562,340} 54,133,526
Toial gross wrilten premium 227,966,351 48,784,321y 179,252,230
Farned premivis {196,207,693) £74%6,981  (149,416,713)
Balance psatend of theyeayr 7 98,754,524 (14,779 489) 33,975,044
e 2012 N L
Reinsurers’
(iross Share Met
Balanee as at beginning of the vear 83,486,109 {27.284,892) 536,191,217
Total gross written premium 183,527,916 {45,394,384} 138,133,532
Earied premioms (199,318,159 o $9,126,936  {140,191,223)
Balance as atend of the vear 67,695,866 13,562,340} 34,133,526
i1, PREMIDUM BECTIVABLES NEY
4613 2012
Premiams receivable 3,122,098 02,658,426
Less: Alowance for impairmernt 28,133,360} (24,028,376}

65,008,738 67,430,050

Weither past due  Past due hut pot Past due and

e kotal o nor impaiyed Bapaived  impaived
31 Becember 2013 9%,122,098 22.998.312 420304726 28,113,368
31 Decembsr 2017 92,058,426 24,922,401 42,507,640 24,628,376

The Company classifies receivable balances as “past due and impaired’ on a case to case basis, impainment
against which is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income - jusurance operations. The Company
does not obtaia collateral against preinnun receivables. Amounts wlich are neither past due nor considered
impaired by management, in respect of preminm receivables, are from mdivideals and unrated corporate

policy holders.




SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{4 Sawdi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES PO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{Armowni in Seci Rivals)

12 DEFERRED POLICY ACCOEESTTION CORTS

2013 2012
Bakance g5 ot beginning of the yeuar ‘FAZTE8A 10,117,495
Tnewrred during the year 23,141,633 21,112315
Amortised during the year 0,548,389 (24,202,526)
Balanee as af end of the year 5,620,528 7,027,284
13, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Yusnrance Operafions 2413 2012
Employee costs 32,936,068 28,361,612
Office rent 4,831,927 2,985,054
Legal and professtonal fees 2,436,745 1,270,493
Depreciation 2,897,171 1,938,525
Information technology aid communications 1,202,793 711,364
Travel and lodging 829,346 461,632
Office supplies, privting and stationery 428,717 332,850
Marketing, advertising and promotions 254,011 358,183
Others 1,504,235 897318
46,494,118 17,316,234
Shareholders’ Operations 2013 2012
Employee costs ' 468,650 490,350
Execntive commiities expenses 418,500 922,500
Regulatory and other fees 220,000 220,000
Legal and professional fees 234,508 14,500
Information technology and communications 120,550 958,750
Travel and lodging 3,050 153,564
Others 1,615 39,720
1,447,065 1,941,384
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SANAD COUPRRATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sandi Joint Stock Comprny)
NOTES TO THE PINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FO THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Amount in Scrudi Rivals)

14, STATULTORY DEPOSIT

TR TR T AN B r Lm RreFk a Bbsy 10108 Fminl B

As required by Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations, the Company is required o deposit 10% of its paid
up capital, smounting to SR 20 million (2012: SR 20 million), within thres months from the date of the
issuance of the Leense i a bank desiguated by SAMA. The statutory deposit is saintained with a tocal
bank and can be withdrawn only with the consent of SAMA,

15, SHARE CAPITAL

The muthorised and issved capital of the Company as at 31 Decensber 2013 is SAR 200 million 2012 aR
200 million) consisting, of 20 million {2012: 20 million) shares of BAR 10 each.

16, OPERATING SEGMENTS

ik

Congistent with the Company’s miernal reporting process, operating segments have been approved by
msnagement in respect of the Company's activitios, assets and lisbilities as stated below. Segment results
da not include genesal and administration expenses and ofher income.

Segment asseis do not include property and equipment, prepayments and other assets, preminms
receivable, reinsnrances” balance receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Accordingly, they are
inctaded in unalioeated assets,

Segment Habilities do not include due to shareholders operations, end-of-service indemuities, reinsurers’
balances payable, aceried expenses and other liabilities,

All inaliocated assets and Habilittes are reparted to chief operating decisien maber as vnallocated assets
and Labilities and are monitored on a centralised basts.

All of the Company’s operating assets and principal activities are located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

N 2




SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REENSURANCE COMPANY
(A Sandi Joini Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YRAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20613
{Anrount in Sewlf Rivals)

16,  OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continned)

iz b S

2} Statement of vesulis for inserance opevatiouns

For the year ended 31 Dessmbier 2013 I
Modical Wioloy Marine Enginesving Otliars Total

Giross weitten premisms S5 RTTRTEET | 10818056 149iniel 18804318 227966351
(LI56,153)  (LIT4680)  (I7302,727)  (I25TANL)  (1L,802,701)  (48714124)

81,380,149 BE,0605. 198 3220029 2335840 4,305,644 179,254,238

Rainsurance praminms ceded
et written prominms

et chizpges in unenned premiums ETESTEY)  (2,564,265) {152,177) {2,386} (738937 (20844518

£4,329,302% 85,444,935 3,074,053 2,352,644 4339, 721 145,416,712

e - 4,780,440 3,311,625 324,186 1,216,868

12,406 3354629 57020 5,460 A3625 444,334

T UBa3al762 BSTALSEZ  BILLSLL 5649720 139813 H6LOTL706

fet eavned premines
Reinsurance commission caned

Other underwriting incoms

"Totad wn dervriting revanus

Choss chaims paid (8,611,802 (FLATEE30)  (A,665,083)  {2,061,793) (4.887.403)  {132,800,533)

Reinsurance share of claims paid 18273007 967,850 4,397,601 1,938,711 4505,762 21585971
Net clabms paid (8,338,795 (70606960) (1266084  (124,087)  (BSLE4N) (1HL2I7S62)
et changes in oulstanding clains WEaAE4 (13475826 1,065,158 323,046 {180,680)  {12,046,878)
and other teclipical reserves

GE1IT3T (84,082,784) {240,926) 195,904 {E062,321y  (123,264,440)

Met clabms eost
3,576,002 (10,920,855) {4, 488,153) {1,978, 184) {E885,035) (20,548,359

Policy acquisition costs
(2935305 (3,870,45%7) {B25,957) (924,345) {509,580)  {6,603,66%)

Orthier underwriting expenses, net

Impairment sllowance against
doubtiuf 1eecivables (1,288,200)  3.956,374) - v .- 4,537,280
(45,907,639) (100,130,517)  (3215,031)  (3,303,565)  (3456,966) (155013,718)

Folnl nnderwriting expenses

Underwriting surphus  {loss}

before adiminisération expenses 5434123 (14,349,955) 4,696,490 346,164 3,831,165 6,057,988

Unallozated incoroe 317,083
Unallocated expenses L{AGABGRERY
Met loss frow insurance

operations (46,119047)

W




SAMAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPARY
{4 Baadi Joint Block Company)
MOTES TO THE FINANCEAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2613
{Amrount v Saudi Rivals)

i6.  UPERBATING SEGMENTS (Continned)

2y Bintement of vegndis for insurance operations (confinmed)

For the veor eaded 3] Peeember 2012

Medica " Malar Marine Eupineering Others Total
Tobal grosy wiilien premivins 68,245,537 74,401,896 14,076,319 11,935,324 4,869,241 183,527,946
Reusmmance preminmus veded (11,2203 9?}_ (2,0_21(_}1.:%2.”6) (0887552 (16,625834) (10,640,275}  (45394384) :
et wrificn prominms 59,025,130 72,381,576 3,488,577 1,309,290 4,228,965 138,133,532 i
Met changes {n vnearaed premiumy ROMEIR7  (62003%4) 73931 543,436 67,331 2057691
Net exped premiums &4.673 517 66,091,174 3,262,508 LET2 724 4,201,286 144,194,223
Reinsuanes commission earned o 3184248 1,964,506 2270478 8,422,282
Cler ynderwiting fncone 13,400 123,044 54,055 4310 30,220 227,934
Total underviriting revenue 6686917 66217,125 6503861 4,841,512 6,591,991 148841439
Giross elains paid (73469708  (53,144,909) (8238500}  (2.450336)  (4,663,038) {141,976,091)
Refnsurance shace of olins paid 26,217,255 S2,280 3798586 2303420 3651957 30420378
Net clalms paid (53,252,453}  {3R.623,624) {4,509,914} {156,016} (HLOEL 7013 €113,353,753)
Net changes in onistanding clubing
and ofher (echnical 1eserves 23,103,100 (£385479)  {1,278,099) (340,129 140,871 19,048,264
Wel claims cost (30,149,353} (55,009,108} {5,788,013) {696,145} {810,830 £92.513,449)
Policy actpuisition cosiz (7,838,683)  {10,319317) (1,617,914 (202099}  (2,445,556) (24,202, 520)
Otler underwriting cipetises, net {2,823, 713%) {387,123 {692,630 {112,318) {(849,845) {5,665,652)
Reversal of impainment allowance
against doubilff receivables 4,86{,080 386,730 - - - 5,246,810
‘Fotal underwriting expenses (35,951,720) (E55IRRIE)  (B098,620)  (3,420459)  (4,126231) (117,134,357
Underweiting surplus { {deficit)
befose administration expenises 8735, 188 688,307 (1,394,758, | 412,083 2,465,763 31,706,582
Unallocated income 414,113
Unallocaled expenses {37,316,234)
Met Jogy from ingorance gperations _ {5, E?&S}y&)ﬁ

i ;) /
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Sandi Joint Steck Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SFATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2613

(Amowrt in Saudi Riyals)

16 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

b) Insursnee operation assets and Habitios

At 31 December 2013

Bledical Mntar arine  Enginesring Others Totat

Agsels - nsurance anerations

Reinsuiers’ shine of nnearned

premivm - - 3683358 6,608,484 4567458 B4019.480

Reirsurers’ share of ontstanding

olahing and other technical regerves 1,032,564 LE3ZAM 3,247,335 10036820 FATITE  33618,39%

Deferred policy sequisition cost 3,508,577 3,603 919 S60,1TE 1041583 808,308 9620523

Alloeated asscts 4,631,141 5,436,409 7418844 PTGT68G6 12853130 4p pigge

thaliocated assels 142,080,156

Total insurance operations assets ’ 53“5};9&555 o

Liabilties - mgurance o

eperations

Uneorned promiusn reserves S0LB00,341 003,725 4,333,501 H965.818 6305630 08,7545

Ountstarching claims and other

technicad rosorves 2E26,050 43807756 4085856 10574955 8760964 88763481

Uearned commission income . o 33138;765 E,’}.&I,Sﬁd 12259}869 4,13[},018

Allocated Jiabifities STEABSSOL  TRBINASL 9758122 191387  IGAIBATL oy canona

Y 4 fiahilii

nalioeniad Halilitics 38,450,332

Total Insurace operations labifities 230,508 538

R S Ty
At 31 Decomber 2012
Wodical Moter Warine Engineeding Others Total

Assets. lnsuranee operaiions

Reftsurers’ share of uacurned

prembum 1,733,029 o 2AUTOUR 5087142 4244 871 13,562,340

Retnsurers’ share of puistanding

olaims and other lechnicsl reserves 14 344,401 4,937,249 5000030 498,152 5,822,308 316iLIw

Referred policy acquisition cost £ 104,460 1,888 894 389745 $34,248 808,337 7007284

Allosated assets o LIBLSO0  BEIGIAD 7805873 13421327 10875586  sg,00014

Unailocated assety 155,503,09

Total insurance operstions assets 2 13,7()5,9 19

Liabilities — insurange operations -

Uneanted promissg reserves 25,542,582 TRADA60 3275384 5441488 5.996¢,960 07,695,866

Outstanding clsiing and other .

fochnical reserves 35,059,512 33,436,689 6,912,409 8369306 6931488 90709402

Unearned comutssion ingome N » 719059 1,328,964 1,164,365 3282388

Aflocated Habilitios 60602094 GO.876145 10966852 15149748 14092813 16 coy s

Unallocated liabilities 53 016,254

Total inssranee operations Habilisies 313,705,916
R p e
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{4 Sands Joint Siock Company}
NOTES O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTIL YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBER 2013
{Amount in Saudi Riyals})

17 BATR VALUES OF RIMANCEAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below anulyses finaneial instroments measured at the end of the reporting period by the Jevel in
the falr vaiue hiersrchy into which the fair vahie measursment is categorised:

Eawel | Level % Leveld ‘Fotal

2013
Equities 24,039,071 - - 24,039,801
Other guoted Investinents - 18,098,721 o 13,098,223
Ungquoted equities - - 1,923,078 1,823,078
24030071 18998271 1923878 44,060,370

2412
Bouities 20,278,005 - . 2,218,608
Other quoted investinents - 17,944,295 e 17,844,295
Unquoted equities - - 1,923,078 1,923,078

20278605 17944205 (973078 40,145,978

The fair values of other financial instraments are not sigoificantly different from the carrying valies
included in the financial statemexnts. During the year, there have been no trunsfers within the levels of fair
vilue hierarchy. Further, there were no movements in the imquoted equities categorised under level 3 of
fsr value lierarchy.

18. MAMAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

Risk gavernance

The Company’s risk governance is manifesied in @ set of established policies, procedures and coutiols
which uses the existing organizational structure 1o meet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy
revolves on willing and knowledgeable risk acoeptance commensusate with the risk uppeiite and a strategic
plan approved by the Board. The Compasy is exposed to insurance, reinstrance, commission rate, eredil,
liquidity and currency risks.

Risk management strueture

A cobesive organizational struciure is established withia the Company in order to identify, assess, mositor
and controf risks.

Board of directors

The apex of risk govemunee is the centrslised oversight of the Board of Directoss providing direction and
the necessary upprovals of strategies and policies in crder fo achieve defined corporate gonls,

Senior management

Senior munagement is responsible for the day (o day operations towards achieving the strategic goals
witlin pre-determined parameters approved by the Board of Directors.




SANAD COOPRRATIVE INSURANCE ARD REINSURARCE COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Conapany)
MOTES 0 THE FINAMCIAL STAYEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECERMBIR 2613
{Amown in Saudi Riyols)
18, MANAGERMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCTIAL RISK (Cantinued)

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks ure mitigated by the management se snmmurised
helow,

" Insnrance yish

The visle under an ingarance contract is the risk that s inzured event will ocour including the uncertaingy of
the amount and timing of any resulting claim, The prineipai risk the Company faces under such coniracts is
that the actual cisims wnd benefit paymients exceed the exying wmoini of insarsnce tisbilities. This is
mfluenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, achizal benefiis paid are greater than originally
estimaled and subsoquent development of loag-term claiins,

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of rigk of loss to a large porifolio of inswrance
confracts a5 a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be sffected across the board by change in any
subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variabitity of risks is aleo improved by careful
selection and implementation of anderwriting strategy and gridelines as well a5 the nse of reinsuranes
arangements.

A significant portion of reinsurance business coded Is placed on a quota share busis with retention Hmire
vatying by product lines. Amounts recoverable from veinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the assumyptions vsed for ascertaining the anderlying pelicy beniefits and are presented in the Statement of
Financial Position us reinsurance nasets.

Althotgh the Company has reiasurance arfangemmeiis, it is ot relieved of s direct obligations o ils
policylioiders and thus a credit oxposure exists with respect to reinswance ceded, to the extent that the
reinsirer i unable to meef its obligations assumed under sisch reinsnance snasgements.

A key feabme of the liability adequacy testing is that the effects of changus in the assumptions on the
mensurement of the lishilities and related assels are not symmetrical, Any improvements in estisnates have
no impact on the value of the fiabilifies and related assets until the linbilities are derecogrised, while
significant etiough deterioration in estimates is immediately recognised to make the liabilities udequate,

i Hemgyrance risk

In order to minimize Tnancial exposure arvising from: large claims, the Company, i the normul conrse of
business, has entered into agreements for reinsurance purposes. The medical policies for 201272013 were
covered through excess of joss prolection smangements. Motor policies are protected by an excess of loss
{reaty. Marine, Fnginecring and other policies have been reinsured on a quota share, ssrplus and faerdtative
basis.

To minimize s exposure to significant osses from reinsurer insolvescies, the Company evalnates the
fimancial cendition of ifs reissurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geograplic regions, activities or ecomomic characteristios of the reinsyrers,

Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of
Birectors and Reinswance Committee. 'Fhe criteria may be summariscd as follows:

a. Mizimum acceptable credit rating by recognised rating agencies (s.g. 8&7P) that is not lower than
BBR.

b, Reputation of particular reinsurance companies.

C. Existing or past business relationship with the reinsuser,

w i [ ga/ﬂ/’i 31




SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Yoint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{Antowni in Saudi Riyals)

15, MANAGEMENT OF iNS{'JRANCE AMD FINANCEAY, BISK (Continued)

Bb. Reinsurance risk (condinned)

The exception 1o this rule is in respect of local companies whe do nof carry any snch eredit rating, This,
however, is limited io fiose companies registered and approved by the local Insorance Regulator.

Furthermore, the finsncial strengih and managesial amd fechnical expertise as well as historical
performance, wliersver applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and compared against a fist of
reguirements pre-set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committes before approving
them for exchange of reinsirance business.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Compasy from its obligations to pelicyhelders and as a
vesilt the Company romains liable for the portion of oulstanding claims veinsured to the extest that the
yeimsurer faile to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements. As shown in Note (i) the
Comgpany has reduced its outstanding claims and oflicr technical reserves by the expected recoveries from
reinsurers gs of 31 December 2013 by SR 23,618,391 (2012: SR 37,61 L,180).

¥reguancy and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natusal disasters, flood,
environmental and economical, atmospherie disturbances, concentration of gisks, civil riots ete. The
Company manages these risk throuph the measwzes described above. The Company has limited ifs
exposuge {o catastyophic and riof svents by se of reinsirance arvangsments.

Concentration of msorance sk

The Company monitors concentsation of Insurance risks primarily by class of business. The table below
sets out the concentration of the ¢laims and preminm liabilities (in percentage torms) by class of business
al halance shest date:

a3 2012
{lags Cetstanding clnims Ouistanding claims
and other techuical Unearned premium and other technical Unearned premivm
Yeseryes rescrves igigryes resarves

Gross (%3 Netf%) Gross {95} et (%) Gross (%) Netr%) Gross %) Net (%)

Medical 24 32 52 Gl 30 34 KH]
Moior 49 G4 30 36 37 33 4]
Marine 5 i A 1 8 4 5
Engineering 12 i T - 9 2 §
Others 160 2 & p s 7 ; 2

The Company also mopitors concentration of risk by evaluating mulfiple risks covered in the same
geographical location, For flood or earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location, For
five and property risk a pacticular building and neighbouring buildings, which conld be affected by a single
claim incident, are considered g5 a single location, Similarly, for marine risk, multiple visks covered ina
single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk, The Company
ovalnates fhe concentration of exposures to individual and comulative insurance risks and establishes its
reinsurance policy 1o reduce such exposures 1o levels acceptable to the Company.

Since the Corpany operates in Saudi Arabia only, hence, all the insurance risks relate fo policies writtes i
Saudi Arabia,

44
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BANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND BREINSURANCE COMPANY
{4 Sandi Jobnt Steck Ceinpony)
NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Aot in Saucdi Rivals)

18, MANAGEMINT OF ENSURANCE AND FINANCLAL BESK (Continned)

Sourees of uncertainty in estimation of future clabm payments

The key source of estimation ancortainty st tho reposiing date relates o valuation of ouistanding claims,
whether reporied or act, aod includes expecied ¢luims setfloment costs, Considerable judgment by
managersei ks required in the estimaiion of amounizs due to poficyholders ansing from claims made ander
nsurance contracts. Such estimaigs are secessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving
varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual resnlts way differ from
manageraent’s estimates resulting in future changes in estiated lisbilities. Gualitative judgeents are nsed
fo assess the extent to which past trends may sot apply in the fitare, for example one off occurrence,
chunges in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Indgmerd is further
used {0 assess ihe extent to which external factors such as indicial decisions and goversment legisiation
affect the estimates,

kn particudar, estimates have to be made both for the expected nltimate cost of claims reporied at the
roporting date and for the expacied ultimate cost of ¢laims [nenrred But Not Reported (IBNR) at the
reporfing dae.

Yrovess used o decide on assunypiions

The proosgs gsed to determing the asswapiions for ealoulating the ovistanding claim resezve is intended to
result in neutral estimates of the most Hikely or expected outcome. The natare of the business makes it very
difficult to predict with certainty the likely avicome of sny particular claim and the ultimate cost of
notified clalimns, Hach notified «laim is gssessed on a separaie, case by case basis with due regard to claim
citcumstances, information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims.
Case estimales are reviewed reguimly and are npdated as and when new information is available,

The estimation of IBNR i¢ generally subject to a greater degree of unerfainty than the estimation of the
cost of settling claims already netifted to the Company, in which case informatiots about the claim event is
available. IBNR provisions are initially estimated at 4 gross level and 4 separate calenlation is carried ont
to estimate the size of the reingurance recoveries, The eslinsation provess takes into acconnt the past claims
reporting pattern and details of reinsnrance programs. The premiumn liabilitivs have been detennined such
that the fotal premiuvm Hability provisions {unearsed preminm reserve and preminm deficiency reserve as a
result of fisbility adeguacy test) wonld be sufficiest fo service the futme expected claims and expenses
likely to oceur on the unexpired policies as of reporimg  date. The expected fiture Tiability 1s determined
using estilmates and assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts and
expeciations of fufure events that are believed to be reasonable.
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BANAL COOPRRATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMBANY

{4 Suudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DBECEMBER 2013
(Aot in Sowedi Rivals)

8, MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continped)

Sensitivify analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities wnder insurance contracts outstnding at the yearend are
adoquate, Mowsver, these amounts are not cerfain and actual payments may differ from the claims
Habitities provided in the financial staternents. The insurance claim Habilities are sehsitive to the variows
assumptions. It has pot been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable sich as legislative
changes or wicertainty in the estimation process. However, a hypothetical 10 percent change in net
ouistanding cheims and other technical roserves wonld impact the net resnits and shareholders” squity as

foltows:

Impact of + 18 percent
Medics!

Motor

Marine

Engingering

Others

Impact of - 10 pereent
Medicat

Mator

Marine

BEngineering

Others

Mot resulis

3914 2012
1,401,693 2,071,511
3,057,179 2,849,944

123,811 190,338

97,405 87,117

132,390 110,911
4,812,568 5,309 821
(1,401,693) (071,511)
(3.,057,179) {2,349,944)
(123,811) {190,338)
(67,495) (87,117
(132,390) (110,911)
(4,812,568) (5,309,821)
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REENSURANCE COMPANY
{4 Saundi Joini Sisck Company}
MRS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERTS
FPOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECTMBER 2043
(Ao i Sawdi Riyals)

18, MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)

Claim developient

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of ifs insurance business in order fo profest
apainst futwre claims experience and developments. As claims develop and actual cost become more
cerfaln, adverse claims experience will become more certain. Adverse chims experience wiil be eiiminated
which results in release of reserves from earlier accidest years. In order to maintain adedquate reserves, the
Company will transfer much of this refesss to the current accident year reserves when the developiment of
claims are less matnse and there is much groater wneettainty attached to the ulfimate cost of claims,

Accigent year 2003 2009 2010 2011 012 3013 Total

Fstimate of ultimate
ciain koss

- Atend of accidont year 4087 500 90,784,794 237,726,795 165,208,719 158,769,666 60,068,116 716,640,682

- Qe year later 4,404,489 84,757,395 221,835,015 137,708,659 - - 448,725,558
- Two year later 3,804215 83,281,810 218,054,031 - o 308,140,056
- Throe yoar fater - §4,231233 - - o - G,231,233
~ Four your kater - o - s - -
Current eslimate of - o
cumaiative claims - B34.231233 218,854,031 137,708,650 158,769,666 66,068,116 478,663,397
Cumaulative payments 1o
cate e BL871,773 282,854,133 127,424,369 85,903,912 33,503,255 588,209,916

Liabifity recognised in
the staternent of finanelal )
position w 2359460 5,199,898 10284200 72,865,734 26,564,861 88,763,481

' Mlarlief Tisk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial iastrument may fluctuate as 4 result of changes in
magket conmmission rates er the market price of securities or the instroment, change in market sentiments,
specnlutive activitics, supply and demand for securities and liquidity h the market.

The Compauy is exposed fo market risk with respect to its available for sale investments. These
investients are semsitive to the various factors that affect market movements, As part of Company’s

investment strategy and to reduce market risk, the Company maintains diversified portfolio and performs
regular monitoring of developments in related markets,

In addition, the key factors that affect market movements are mounitored, including analysis of the
operational and financial performancs of investess.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: cursency risk, commission rate yisk and price righ.
Currency risk

Curvency risk is the risk that the fair value or futwre cash flows of a financial instrument will flueinate
hecause of changes in foreign exchange rates,

Management assesses that {liere Is minimal rvisk of significant fosses due to exchange 1isk fluctuations and
consequently the Company does not hedge its foreign corrency exposure.. - LT




SANAD COOPERATIVE INBURANCE AND REIMNSURANCE COMPANY
£A Bawmdi Juint Stock Company)
HOTES TO FHE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{denonnt in Saudi Rivals)

18 MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continoed)

Comptission rale risk

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission
rale risk to the Company is the zisk of changes in comunission rates raducing the overali return on its fixed
commission rale bearing securities. The Comumission rale risk is limited by monitoring changes in
coninission rafes in the owrencies in which its cash and cash equivalents and lnvestments are
denominated.

At the reporting date, the commission rate profile of Company's commission-bearing financial instruments
17 a5 follows:

Caprrying Amorn!
213 2012

Fized vate instruments
Financial assets 51,077,351 90,918,419

Prescutly, the Company does not hold any variable SIBOR based return bearing instruments that expose
the Company 1o comenission rate risk.

The Company doss uot have any commission bazed finsncial Habilities as 2t 31 December 2012,

The information about Company’s exposute 10 commission raie risk is based on contractual 1e-pricing or
maturity dates whichever is earbier is as follows:

2013
Financlal assels - [nsarance Cornmission hearing Mol Cemmission Total
Operations T T Year 148 Years | > 8 Yemw bearing
Cash and Bank batsce 30,000,080 s e 48,582,401 78,582,401
Preminms receivabie, nel - - - 65,008,738 05,008,738
Reinswrers' balance receivable - o e 1,293,054 1,285 054
Reinsurers' share of fechinteal
reseIVES - - - 23,618,309} . 23,618,381
Other assets e ‘e e 11,551,009 11,991,600
30,060,000 o e 150,495,592 188,495,503
. o 2013 B
Financial assets — Sharehokders’ Commpiissien bearing THon-Commission ‘T'otal
Operations < } Year £-8 Years -8 Years bearing
Clash and Bank balance 343,506,000 o - 1,508,956 31,508,266
Statusory deposit 21,877,358 -- o -~ 21,077.351
Tnvestaenis - availalsie for sula - - a 44,060,370 44,060,370
I.oan reocivable - s - 560,000 SO 000
Other Agsets i e ws 1,448,683 1,448,663
51,077,351 e - 47,371,099 98,655,359

el
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SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Saudi Jobet Stock Company)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAT ENDEX 31 DECEVIBER 2013
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18 MANAGEMENT QF INSURANCE AND FINANCIATL, RISK (Coniinwed)

Commission rate risk (Confimwed)

29 ] 2 L Y T A
Commission bearing Non-Comrission Totat

Financial assefy « Ixsurance < 1 Ve 1.5 Yeurs > § Years bhoming
Opetations
Cash snd Pank balance 30,000,000 . - 15,479,976 65,479,976
Pemiuims receivable, nst e - 67,430,050 07,430,030
Reinsuress” bulance receivabic - - - 9437188 4,437,188
Reinsurers' shiare of technical
TEEEIVES - e e 37,611,190 37,611,190
Other assals . - - - 6,878,670 6,878,670

36,600,000 - oo 156,837,074 186,837,074
e ——————— e~ 2012
Financisl assets — Shareholdess’ Commission beaiing Non-Cosmission Total
Operations <t Vear 1-5 Years & Yeurs bearing
Cash and Bank balance 43,000,000 - 9,940,289 49,940,289
Statutory deposit 25,018,436 - o s 20,918,439
Investments — evailable for sale o - - 40,145,97% 48145975
Loan receivable o - - 500,000 300,000
Cither Asscts - - 19,111 19,111

60,218,419 o v 30,605 378 111,523°797

Oher Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fuir vatue or firme cash flows of finunciel instruments will fluciuate
because of changes it market prices (other than those arising from conunission rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are cansed by faclors speeific lo the iisdividusl financial instrument or its issnet, or
factors affecling all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company's investiments amounting to SAR 40.1 million are susceptible to market price risk arising
from uneertainty zbout flie futwre value of investment scourities. The Company fimits market risk by
diversifying its imvestment portfolio and by actively moniforing the developments in markets.

Had all investments, other than 1nquoted, besn measured at fair values as required by IAS 39, Financial
Tnstruments: Recognition and Measurement, the ispact of hypothetical change of a 10% ncsease and 10%
decrease i the market prices of invesiments on Compuny's profit and equity would be as follows:

Price Effect om Effect on
Fair value chamnge profit and loss  Sharcholders® equity
31 Decomber 2013 10% increase 4,213,729 = 4,009,788
10% decreass {4,213,729) - (4,009,785
31 December 2012 10% increase 3,822,290 - 3,637,291
10% decrease (3,822,200) - 3,637,291}

The sensitivity amalysis presenied is based wpon the postfolio posifion as at 31 December 2013
Accordingly, the sensitivily analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Compuny's
assets of future movements in the value of investmenls held by the Can?ﬁ‘ny.

37




SANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
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18, MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continned)

4. Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that one party o a fmancial instement will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other parly to incur & Tinancial foss.

The Company’s underwriting antivities are all ourried out in Sandi Arabia.
Por ali classes of financial assets held by the Company, athes than fhese relating {o reipsurance contraels as
described in (b} above, the meximum credit tisk cxposme #o the Company i the carrying value as

disciosed in the financial stalements af the balance sheet date.

The comnpany seaks to {imit is credit visk with respect to customers by setting credit Bmit for individual
customers and monitoring oulstanding receivables.

The table below shows the maximuin exposure t0 credii risk for the components of the balance sheet:

2003 LA
Assets - Inzuranee Operations
Bank balances 78,582 400 65,472,976
Preminms receivables, net 53,008,738 : 67,430,050
Reinsnrers’ balance yeceivable 1,295,654 9,437 188
Reingwrers’ share of teclimical reserves 23,618,391 37,611,190
Other assels 11891009 6,878,670

186,495,503 186,837,074

Asnsety - Shaveholders' Onerations
Bank balances 31,568,966 49.940,289
Statutory deposit 21,077,351 20918419
investmenis 18,098.221 17,944,295
Lomns receivable 564,000 500,600
Other assels 1,448,663 19,111

72.693,200 89322114

The crodit quality of Company's bank balances and deposits can be assessed with reference to exilernal
credit rating as follows:

Rating
2013 26172
AA- 110,151,367 115,420,265
At 21,877,351 20918 419
131,228,718 136,338,084

Lo
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BANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{A Sandi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES 1O THE FINARCYAL STATERMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 3013
(Anount in Saudi Rivals)

18 MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND SINANCIAL RISK (Continued)

d. Crodit risk (Condinned)

The credit quality of Company's investment can be assessed with reference 1o external credit ratings as

follows:
Rating . > % . L S
Ads 5,990,309 6,947,500
& or A above _ 1L,898.930 10,996,789

18,098,221 17,044,795

Concemtration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit oxposire is significant in refation to the Company’s fotal credit
exposue. The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are
entored into with diverse credis-worlhy counterparties thersby mitigating any significant concentrations of
eredit risk,

Details of the Company's concentration of sredit risk of fisancial instruments by industrial distribution are

as follovws:
2013 _ 232
%% %
Banks 138,228,748 52 136,338,684 50
Financial Institutions 43,511,666 17 66,361,215 24
Services & Contracting 28,815,564 11 30,923,146 11
Others 49,637,846 28 39,026,674 15

153,188,794 106 272,643,719 100

e Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter diffiendty in raising finds fo mest its obligations
and commitments associaled with financial instroments. The Company has a proper casli management
system, where daily cash cellection and redemption is sirielly montivred and reconciled al the end of the
day. At the time of investment, particular eraphasis is focused on the seleclion of those companies which
are aclively traded. The Company manages this risk by mainfaining mataeities of financial assets and
financial liabilities and investing a major portion of the Company’s assets in highly Hauid financial assets.

The lable below analyses the Company's finauncial assefs and lizbilifies into relevant maturity gronpings
based on the remaizing period st the balance sheet date to the contractual matwrity date, The expected
maturity approximaies the contractual maturity. The amounts in the fable are the contractuul undisconnted
casl flows.

19
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BANAD COOPERATIVE INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY
{4 Saudi Joint Stock Company}
NOYES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(dmouni in Soudi Riyals)

18. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continueh)
e Liguidity risk (Contfipned)
Menrity Profile
- . 21}33 LR BRI, PR
Tress than ong Tia5 Mo fised Tatal
Finpncisl assels « Insnrance Operafions year years matnrity
Cash and Bank balance 78,582,401 o~ " 78,582.401
Presmiums receivable, get 65,008,738 - 65,008,738
Remsurers’ balance receivable 1,295,054 1,295,054
Remsurers' share of technical reserves 23,618,361 an - 23,618,391
Otiher ussets 11,991 000 e - 11,991 000
188,495 593 e 186,495 503
Less than ene ited Mo fiwed Total
Frranelal asgets ~ Shareholders’ Operations year YRary pratuy iy
Cash and Bank balance A6 . 31,568,966
Siatutory deposit o - 21,071,351 2077351
Investiments - avaitable for sale 44 060,370 - e 44,060,370
Loan teceivable - 500,000 500,000
Other Assets 1,448,663 - - £448,663
77,077,999 G ALSTTSSE 98655350
o L 2012
Less than one Tws No fixed Totai
Financial assets - Insuranoe Operations year years maturity
Cash and Bank balance 65,479,976 - - 65,470,970
Premiums receivable, net §1,430,056 n o 67,436,050
Reinsurers” balance receivable 9,437,188 - - 8,437,188
Reinsurers’ shave of techiioal reserves 37,611,194 . s 37,611,190
Qther assels 6878670 e - 6,878,670
186,837,074 - ~ 186,837,074
Financial assets - Shareholders’ Less than one Hod No ﬁx.eil Total
Operations year years natursty —
Cash and Bank balance 49,940,289 - - 49,944,289
Statutory deposit - - 20918419 20918419
Investimenis - avaifable for sale 40,145,978 . - 40,145,978
Loan receivable e o 560,060 506,000
Other Assets 19,111 - - 19,111
_90,105378 . 21418419 111,523,797
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18 MANAGEMENE OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Continked)

e, Ldguidiy visk {Continged)
Baturity profile (Conifuued)

013
Finamrcial Habilities - Insurance Less than one Mo fxad
Operations Ly _1ioSyears maturity Taiul
Reinsurer balancos payable 3,005,270 - 1,065,270
Acorued expenses and ofher labilifies 31,814,206 - - 31,814,206
Ouistanding claims and other techiical
TESEIVES 88,763,481 o - 38,763,481
od-of-service Indemnities . - e 357036 3,571,056
123642857 -~ 3,871,086 127,214,013
Financkal Habifitles - Shareholdery’
Operations .
Accrsed expouses snd other Habilities 387,025 s e 387,025
IBTR25 e .. 10/
B0I2 e
{035 than one Na fined
Finangial liakikiites - nsurance Qperations Y&ar L to 5 years maturity Fotal
Reinsurer balances payable - 3,404,068 o 3,404,068
Accrued expenses and other habilities 431,226,197 o - 41,220,197
Crutstanding claims and other technical
reserves 09,705,402 - e 04,109,402
End-oftservice Indemnities : - . 2,400,067 2,450,967
135,333,667 - 2,490,967 137,824,634
Financial liabilifies .- Shareholders’
Qperations
Accrued expenses and other linbililes 387,025 o e 3R7.025
387,023 - . 387,625
8 Goerational yisk

Operationaf visk i3 the risk of direct or indireet loss arising from a wide variefy of eauses assaciated with
the processes, fechuology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within
the Company or externally at fhe Company’s service providers, and from extemnal factors other then credit,
market and Hguidity risks such as those ansing from legal and regulatory requisements and generally
acoepled standards  of investinent management behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the
Company’s activities,

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance Emifing of financial losses and
damage to its teputation with achieving its investment objective of generalipg returns for investars.

- A
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18, MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK (Gontinued)

. Operational visk {continned)

The primary responsibility for the development and mplementation of controls over operational rish rests
with the Board of Directors, This responsibility encormpasses the controls in the following areas:

- Tequirements for appropriate segregution of dufies betwsen various fimctions, roles and
responsibHities;

- tequirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions,

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procadures;

- regnirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faved, and the adecuacy of controls
and procedures to address the risks ideatified;
ethical und buginess standards,
¢isk mitigation, including insurance whers this is effoctive.

Setior Matagainent ensures that the Company's staff has adequate aining and experience and fosters
effective communication related to operational risk management.

g. Regniatory framewark wisk

The operations of the Company are subjact fo local regulatory requirements within the jerisdictions where
it is incorporated. Such regulutions not only preseribe approval and momiforing of activities but also
impose cerfain restrictive provisions e.g. capital adequacy to minimize the risk of defauit and insalvency
on the part of the jusurance companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen liabilities us these arise.

19, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AN AN i e v st

Objectives are set by the Company to maintain healthy eapital ratios in order to support its business
objectives und maximize sharcholders’ valus. The Company manages its capital regircments by assessing
shartfails between reported and required capital levels on a regular bagis, Adjustments to current capital
levels are made in light of changes in matket conditions and risk characteristics of the Company’s
activities, In order to maintsin or adjust the capital structure and comply with regulatory requirements, the
Company may issue shares or fake other appropriate measures.

As per relevant rogulatory requirements, the Company need to maintain solvency margins equal fo its
share capital after the end of its third year of operations. As at 31 Decoruber 2013, the Company’s
solvency murgin is befow the limit preseribed by SAMA. The Board of Directors and management is in
the process of taking necessary steps to ensure that solvency regniremsents are complied with.

Further, the Capital Market Aunthority has recently issued instructions regarding procedures applicable to
listed Companies whose losses are in excess of 50% of Capital, which will be effoctive from | July 2014,
If the acomnulated fosses of the Company as of the balasce sheet date continie to be in excess of 50% of
its Capital as of that date, the shares will be flagged 1o indicate losses in excess of 50% in Tadawul, In the
event that losses were to reach 75% of the Capital, the Company’s shares would be sispended for one
trading session. Further punitive measures would be applicable, if the acoumulated losses wore to exceed

106024,

42
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28, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a.  Legal proceedings and regulutivns

The Company opesates in the insurance industry and is subject o legal proceedings in the normal covrse of
business, While it is not practicable to forecast or defermine the final rosulis of afl pending or threatened
fegal procsedings, management does not believe that such proceedings (sucluding litigations) will have a
tnatenial effect on its results and finsncial position,

4, Capital conmnitiments

There are ne capital commitments of the Company as at the reporting period end.

21, RECLASSIFICATION

Comparatives figures for cerfain account heads have been re-ciassified fo confirm with the crrrent year's
presentation,

22, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stefemnents have been approved by the Board of Direciess on 18 February 2014
cosrespondilig 1o 18 Rabi Al Thani 1435,
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